
Frequently Asked Questions - Provider Company - CHS Ltd 
 

Why do we need one? 
Historically community services (formerly known as enhanced services) were negotiated by Local 

Pharmaceutical Committees (“LPCs”) with Primary Care Trusts (“PCTs”) and when terms, fees, etc. 

were agreed, participating local Contractors would enter into an individual contract or service level 

agreement with the PCT and the PCT would manage the process including payment and in theory the 

collection of data. This has proved more complicated for some areas since changeover and there are 

more complex tenders aimed at single Providers coming out where Commissioners do not wish to 

work with multiple agencies, sort payments, provide kit or training in some instances.  

A LPC cannot enter into contracts as a Provider and the commissioning landscape is changing with 

tender rules likely to be applied for larger Contracts as some services are bound up into larger ‘pyramid 

tiered’ Contracts.  

In order to overcome the issue of a LPC not being able to enter into contracts in its own right and 

address the preference of Commissioners and particular LA and CCGs to contract with a single entity, 

PSNC is recommending the establishment of LPC Provider Arm companies. Use of a Provider Arm 

company will enable a LPC to put together a consortium of local Contractors so that they can all 

participate in a contract.  

What sort of Company will it be? 
The PSNC suggested method is to use a company limited by guarantee with the support of the PSNC 

Support Provider Company.  A company limited by guarantee is a type of company that does not have 

a share capital or shareholders.  

Rather than having shareholders a company limited by guarantee has Members. Members, which can 

be individuals or companies, have limited liability subject to guaranteeing to pay a predetermined sum 

(£1.00) towards the Company's liabilities in the event that it is wound up.   

A Company limited by guarantee has a list of predetermined ‘objects’ stipulated in its Articles of 

Association. It is a private company and CHS Ltd will have five Directors; two LPC appointed and three 

appointed by the Members. The Directors are responsible for the day to day management of the 

Company. Their powers are subject to the terms of the company's articles of association and also the 

Companies Act 2006 and as in a company limited by shares, these powers are conferred on the 

directors collectively, when they are sitting as a board and passing resolutions for the management of 

the company.   

What is the vision? 
To build a Company which is open to all Contractors, so that all can benefit equally from the support 

and opportunities that this will bring with the changes to the commissioning environment. 

To have a mechanism for Commissioners to engage with and commission services through a single 

contracting vehicle for the whole of the Central Midlands. 

For the Company to support local and wider spread initiatives, being both proactive as well as reactive.  



 

Values: 
 Transparency 

 Inclusive and Collaborative 

 Innovative 

Aims: 
 Work collaboratively with other Providers to deliver services  

 Provide the infrastructure to support service provision including training, IT and marketing for 

Members 

 Work proactively to create opportunities for Contractors at a fair rate of return 

 Break even by end of year three having paid the LPC loans back in full and creating sufficient 

income to cover the costs of running the business and to deliver a Dividend to all Members 

whilst providing fair return to all Members providing commissioned services.  

Purpose: 
The Company is formed to act as a Membership organisation for community pharmacies. The 

Company will act as a provider of pharmacy services to Commissioners.  The company may provide or 

offer to provide such services alone, collectively with its Membership and/or collectively with other 

organisations.  The Company may propose to potential Commissioners services which may be 

commissioned, or respond, to invitations to tender to provide services. The Company could act as a 

buying group to negotiate discounted services for its Membership. The Company may choose to 

provide other such services that it deems to be in the best interests of its Membership.  

Why are we working across a big geography? 
To have more influence, share expertise and keep running costs down with shared back office 

function, whilst still being able to operate locally as needed.  

The local CCGs all work together. There is therefore increasing commonality across services.  It is 

anticipated that tenders for prime providers will therefore cut across CCG and LPC boundaries. If we 

have devolution, there is the potential for public health services to be amalgamated. By working 

together, the LPCs are forming a provider organisation of sufficient scale to be able to tender for 

regional services. 

The LPCs already work closely together as Community Pharmacy West Midlands Cluster. This allows 

us to work collaboratively with NHSE West Midlands, who share the same footprint. It will also support 

LPCs working together on STP footprints within the geography which are likely to be very influential 

going forward and may become the Commissioners for Pharmacy and Integrated Services.  

STP (Sustainability and Transformation Plans) are collaborative approach with acute, community, 

primary and social care across a wider footprint combining a number of CCG areas. Our four STP 

footprints are Herefordshire & Worcestershire; Coventry & Warwickshire; Birmingham & Solihull and 

The Black Country. 

The North Midlands LPCs may choose to join us - with whom we share the PSNC Regional LPCs 

footprint.  

Are there any other organisations setting up Provider Companies? 
Yes.  There are GP federations and Local Optical Companies being setup across the country.  PSNC 

have recommended that all LPCs establish provider companies to support the interests of pharmacy 



Contractors and many LPCs have already done so.  For example, http://lipcohealthcare.co.uk/ has 

been trading successfully for three years and seven LPCs across Greater Manchester are jointly 

establishing a provider company 

Are LPCs allowed to set up Provider Companies? 
Yes.  The constitution of the LPCs allow them to establish a company to support the interests of 

pharmacy Contractors.  The relevant clauses in the constitution are:  

3.3.4. The Committee may establish or assist in the establishment of a body corporate formed for the 

sole purpose of supporting the interests of pharmacy Contractors, provided that the memorandum and 

articles of the body corporate are agreed at a general meeting of the Committee by a two thirds 

majority of the total votes cast (including postal votes).   

3.3.5. The Committee’s assistance of such a body corporate as mentioned in 3.3.4 above shall be 

withdrawn if requested by a majority of the pharmacy Contractors voting (including by postal vote) at 

a general meeting.  

Has PSNC set up a Provider Company? 
No, but it has set up a Company, which will support LPC Provider Companies, under the trading name 

of Healthcare Together. Below is an extract from their Prospectus.  

 

 

Why is there a joining Membership fee? 
CHS Limited like any new company needs to raise start-up capital and working capital.  The funds are 

required to pay legal fees, salary costs, tendering costs, etc.  Without this capital the company would 

be unable to trade. The way that the LPCs have chosen to set up CHS Limited minimises the costs 

involved so fees will be largely used to fund operating costs.  The fee will be a modest amount and 

significantly less than most GPs have paid to setup their federations. The fee will be per Member (not 

premise) and is proposed to be £150 when the Company is first set up, rising to £400 to join after 3 

months. Associate Members will pay the same fees. 



What will it cost in annual subscription fees? 
There will be a nominal annual subscription fee payable for each pharmacy premises, which will be 

set by the Directors.  If the formation of the company is ratified, each pharmacy contractor 

represented by the LPCs will be given the option to join as Members.  Pharmacy Contractors are not 

obliged to become Members and a support to ratify the formation of CHS Limited in no way implies 

that you will become a Member.  Even if you choose not to become a Member we hope you will see 

the benefit of the LPCs operating a provider company for those who do wish to subscribe and that you 

will therefore support this proposal. Associate Members will pay the same fees. 

What are the benefits of being full Members? 
Subscribed full Members will have the ability to shape and influence the business. They can vote and 

appoint non-LPC Directors.  They will have access to a range of discounted services which may be 

negotiated using our influence as a buying group. Members will receive fair and appropriate rewards 

via service delivery fees. Any profit will be retained by the Company and used to support its running 

costs, repay LPC loan and a proportion shared with full Members, with a reduced share for Associate 

Members (25% of the full Members share).   

What are the similarities and differences between Associate Members and Full 

Members? 
Both will pay Membership and Annual Subscription Fees. All Members and Associate Members will be 

able to express interest in providing services available provided it is within their competence and they 

are able to meet the service requirements, within the geography covered by the service.  

All Members providing a commissioned service will benefit from the associated service fees received 

by the Company, minus any costs to the Company where these are not covered by a separate 

management fee. These costs will be kept to a minimum and will in most cases be covered by the 

annual subscription fee.  

However, Associate Members will have no voting rights and will not be able to appoint Directors nor 

directly influence the Company’s strategy. In addition, where there is net profit made by the Company 

(after all costs covered, loans repaid and any investment in the Company), any monies will be shared 

with Members. Note that Associate Members will receive a reduced share equating to no more than 

25% of the full Member’s share. 

How will the Provider Company work with the LPCs? 
Each LPC will be a LPC Member of the Provider Company and appoint a representative to form part of 

the Scrutiny and Oversight Committee. This Committee will appoint LPC Directors and scrutinise the 

way CHS Ltd utilises the loan made by the LPCs both retrospectively and reviewing plans for future 

expenditure. The loan will be made in instalments with the Scrutiny and Oversight Committee meeting 

at least quarterly to approve the next instalment being made. There will be a Memorandum of 

Understanding incorporating a Loan agree agreement between the LPCs and CHS Ltd, this will be 

facilitated through the West Midlands Cluster (CPWM). It is expected that the LPCs individually and as 

a Cluster will support CHS Ltd in developing service proposals and stakeholder management. CHS Ltd 

would be the mechanism for delivery and management of the services for which it is commissioned.  

If I join the Provider Company, will I still have to pay my LPC levy, and if so why? 
The Provider Company will be working across a large geography, and will work with LPCs to bid for 

services in constituent areas, or across areas covering multiple LPCs.  It will work only on issues relating 

to contracts it holds.  



The LPCs will be instrumental in retaining local relationships and in many instances will be able to 

produce and develop local services alongside commissioners. 

Increasingly though commissioners are looking to secure services through provider companies, who 

manage all areas of the contract including performance issues. 

LPCs will remain the statutory local representative committees to support all Contractors, in their 

delivery of all their contracted services, either through NHS England, Public Health, Clinical 

Commissioning Groups, or Provider Companies. 

What happens is the Company gets into financial difficulty or has to be wound up? 
The Companies Act 2006 requires that a Director should act within their powers and promote the 

success of its company, exercise independent judgment, reasonable care, skills and diligence while 

avoiding conflicts of interest and not accepting benefits from third parties.  In essence this means that 

a Director should act within the best interests of the Company above their own personal interests.  

The Scrutiny and Oversight Committee, along with the Company Directors will work to avoid financial 

issues. The Company will be able to hold Service Providers to account to ensure compliance with 

service requirements.  

However, in the unlikely event that things do go wrong the Members and Directors (outside of normal 

Directors rules) liability is limited to £1. The LPCs have no liability, however there is a chance that the 

loan may not be paid back in full should the Company fail before the loan is repaid. The Scrutiny and 

Oversight Committee will however, be reviewing the loan installments throughout to reduce the 

possibility of this occurring. Having a large geography for the Provider Company means that each LPC 

is loaning a smaller amount than would have been required should each LPC set up separate 

Companies. Therefore, the maximum amount at risk is relatively small (e.g. £7,500 for a LPC with 100 

Contractors). 

How do I get further information? 
Contact your LPC Chief Officer in the first instance. More information will also be on the LPC website.  

Peter Prokopa MRPharmS – peter@southstaffslpc.co.uk  
LPC Office 01785 715460 Mobile 07870 214487  

mailto:peter@southstaffslpc.co.uk

